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IN THE DISTRICT COURT

§
%

LUBBOCK COUNTY, TEXAS

THE STATE OF TEXAS,

Plaintiff

EXTREME FITNESS & WELLNESS,
INC., A Texas Corporation, SHON
ZACHARY PEREZ, and DESIREE
MASTERS PEREZ, Individually,

0N U0 LD L LT LT LD LD LD LD LN LD LD

Defendants. VLQW( JUDICIAL DISTRICT

STATE OF TEXAS’ ORIGINAL PETITION AND
APPLICATION FOR EX PARTE TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER
AND TEMPORARY INJUNCTION AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION

TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SAID COURT:
COMES NOW THE STATE OF TEXAS, hereinafter referred to as Plaintiff, acting
by and through Attorney General of Texas GREG ABBOTT, cdmplaining of EXTREME

FITNESS & WELLNESS, INC., SHON ZACHARY PEREZ, and DESIREE

MASTERS PEREZ, hereinafter referred to as Defendants, and for cause of action would -

respectfully show:

1. DISCOVERY CONTROL PLAN

1.1 Thediscovery in this case is intended to be conducted under Level 2 pursuant to TEX.

R. C1v. P. 190.3.
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II. NATURE OF THIS SUIT
2.1  The Attorney General, acting within the scope of his official duties under the

authority granted to him under the Constitution and the laws of the State of Texas, brings this

lawsuit in the name ofthe State of Texas through his Consumer Protection and Public Health

Division against the Defendants for violations of the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices -
Consumer Protection Act, TEX. BUS. & CoM. CODE ANN. § 17.41, et seq. (hereinafter
“DTPA”) and TEX. OcC. CODE ANN. § 702.001, et seq.(hereinafter “Health Spa Act”). The
DTPA grants éuthority to the Attorney General to seek injunctive relief and civil penalties
for violations of its provisions. TEX. BUS. & COM CODE ANN. § 17.47. The Health Spa Act
also grants authority to the Attorney General to seek injunqtive relief and civil penalties for
Violations of its provisions. TEX. OcC. CODE ANN. § 702.552.

III. DEFENDANTS

3.1  Defendant EXTREME FITNESS & WELLNESS, INC. is a Texas corporation and
may be served with citation by servingl its registered agent, as follows:
Shon Zachary Perez, 5905 95™ Street, Lubbock, Texas 79424-6706.
32  Defendant SHON ZACHARY PEREZ is a resident of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas and service and citation may be served upon him as follows: |
Shon Zachary Perez, 5905 95" Street, Lubbock; Texas 79424-6706.
3.3 Defendant DESIREE MASTERS PEREZ is a resident of Lubbock, Lubbock

County, Texas and service and citation may be served upon her as follows:

Desiree Masters Perez, 5905 95 Streef, Lubbock, Texas 79424-6706.
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IV. JURISDICTION

4.1  This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to §17.47(b) of the DTPA and

§702.552 of the Health Spa Act.

V. VENUE

51  Venue of this suit lies in Lubbock County, Texas, for the following reasons:

a. Under TEX. C1V. PRAC. & REM. CODE ANN. § 15.002(a)(1) (Vernon’s 2002),
venue is proper because all or a substantial part of the events or omissions
giving rise to the claim occurred in the county of Sui;t; and

b. Under DTPA §17.47(b), venue is proper because the Defendants have done
business in the county of suit; and

C. Under Health Spa Act §702.552 (b)(2), venue is propér because the

| Defendants reside in the county of suit.

VL PUBLIC INTEREST
6.1 Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, haé reason to believe that the Defendants are
engaging in, have engaged in, or are about to éngage iﬁ, the unlawful acts or practices set
forth below. That the Defendants have, by means of these unlawful acts and practices,
caused damage to or aéquired money or property from persons, and that the Defeﬁdants
adversely affect the lawful conduct of trade and commerce, thereby directly or indirectly
affecting the people of this State. Therefore, the Consumer Protection & Public Health
Division of the Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas believes and is of the

opinion that these proceedings are in the public interest.
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‘VII. TRADE AND COMMERCE

7.1 Defendants have, at all times described below, engaged in conduct which constitutes
“trade” and “commerce” as those terms are defined by §17.45(6) of the DTPA.

VIII. ACTS OF AGENTS

8.1  Whenever in this Petition it is alleged that the Defendants did any act, it is meant that
the Defendants performed or participated in the act, or that the officers, agents or employees
of the Defendants performed or participated in the act on behalf of and under the authority

of the Defendants.

IX. NOTICE BEFORE SUIT

9.1  The Consumer Protection & Public Health Division contacted the Defendants, by and
through their attorney of record, in writing to inform them of the alleged unlawful conduct
at least seven (7) days before this suit was filed, as may be reqﬁired by §17.47(a) of the

DTPA.

X. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

10.1 Defendants began advertising memberships in a new health spa, Extreme Fitness and
Wellness in late 2007, representing “NO MONEY DOWN - NO CONTRACT- $9.95 A
MONTH.” The cost and/or fees were advertised to be valid for only a “limited” period,
encouraging consumers to join early before the business was totally operational and before
the membership dues and fees Were increased. (Exhibit A). The Defendants leased a large
spadc at 5004 Frankford ‘Avenue, Lubbock, Texas 79424-1131 and began to pre-sale ‘

memberships to their health spa at their leased location and by the Internet. (Exhibit B).
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10.2. In lieu of the exercise equipment that the Defendants represented to members was
“on its way”v,and “would be arri{/ing soon”, they represented that they would be bffering
exercises classes in kick boxing, yoga, ‘yogilates, cross-fit, cardio-sculpt, BOSU and core
strength and would provide “free” child care. Representations were xnnade.that once the
equipment was delivered and the locker room facilities Were compléted, the Defendants
~ would host a “Grand Opening.” The Defendants encouraged coﬁsumers to purchase
memberships early, charging a $25.00 “fee” and represented to consumers that the “fee”
would incfease to $100.00 after the “Grand Opening.” The monthly rate of $9.95 was

fepresented to be “forever.” (See Supporting Affidavits).

10.3  The Defendants advertised that the health spa to be a “full fitness facility”, “open
24/7" after the Grand Opening with a variety of classes, top of the line equipmeﬁt; c‘a‘rdio-
deck, men’s and women’s only shower/ locker room facilities and aAdaycare. The Defendants
represented to consumers that they could cancel their membership in three (3) days and
receive a full refund. Additionally, the Defendants represented that should consumers have
a disputé with the business, they could make a claim under the Defendants’ surety bond with
 the State of Texas. (See Supporting Affidavits).

10.4 The Consumer Protection & Public Health Division has received 180 complvai_nts
regarding the misrepresentations of the Defendants. The Defendants sold over 800

memberships based upon several misrepresentations, including but not limited to:

a. “NO MONEY DOWN?” but required a $25 “enrollment fee”;
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b. “NO CONTRACT” but the consumers were required to sign a “membership
agreement”;
c. That state of the art exercise equipment would arrive in by March 1st and
when it did not arrive, Defendants claimed that it would arrive by April 1%
and that they had no idea why the shipment was delayed from California,
when Defendants knew at the time that they had not purchased the
équipment and did not have the money to purchase the equipment;
d. That Defendants had a surety bond in place with the Secretary of State;
(Exhibit C).
e. Thét Defendants would refund the dues/fees to consumers.
105 Defendants collected in excess of $40,000 in pre-sale membership dues and fees
from consumers and failed to open a health spa as advertised: (ExhibitD). Defendants have
spent the membership dues/fees for their personal use, such as: Buffalo Wild Wings; Lin’s
Restaurant; Taco Villa; Jake’s Sports Café; Sonic Drive In; Smbotlzie King; Wing Stop;
Georges; Cracker Barrel; O’Hana Sushi Bar; Arby’s; Lujan’s; Texas Roﬁdhouse;
Hooters; The Gas Liéht; Docs Liquor Store; Chances R; Adolph’s Bar & Grill; Brady’s
Package; Lakeway Liquor; Blockbuster Video; Main Event; Select A Seat; Movie 16;
PetSm{;rt; Veterinary Clinic; Buckle; Men’s Warehouse; and Red Raider Outfitters.
Defendants also used membership dues/fees to make payments on theivr personal automobile
~ loans, boat loan, motorcycle loan, mortgage loan and to purchase a membership to Lake

Ridge Country Club. Defendants repeatedly transferred money between their business
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accounts and personal accounts, commingling the funois from all of their accounts. (Exhibit
E).

10.6  OnApril 11,2008, tﬁe landlord, Alliance Realty Serviées; changed the locks on the
leased premises for the Defendants’ non-payment of rent in excess of $18,000. (Exhibit F).

XI. HEALTH SPA ACT VIOLATIONS

11.1 ‘Defendanté have engaged in conduct, as élleged above, in violation of the Health Spa
Act, TEX. OCC. CODE ANN. § 702.001, ef seq. (West 2007), by:
a. F a_tiling‘to obtain ahealth spa operator’.s certificate, as required by Health Spa
Act §702.101;
b. Failing to complete an application for a health spa operator’s certification of
registration with the secretary of state in violation of §702.102; |
C. Failing to post a health spa operator's certificate of registration in a
conspicuous place at each registered location, as required by Health Spa Act
§702.105; | ' ' | ‘ , .
d.  Failing to submit to the comptroller, a copy of the operator’s certificate of
registration for application ofa sales tax permit as required by ﬁealth Spa Act
§702.107;
e. Failing to secure a surety bond or posting security with the Texas Secretary
of State, as required by Health Spa Act §702.151; and 4§702. 153,

f. Failingto comply with §702.301 requirements in their membership contracts;
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g. Failing to comply with the disclosure requirements as set forth in §702.3 02;

h. Failing to provide the requifed language in the membership contracts in
violation of §702.304;

L Faﬂing to provide the stafutory language in the membership contracts in
violation of §702.305;

j. Failing to cancel the membership contracts for a full refund in violation of
§702.307,

k. Selling or offering for sell, a membership in a health sba before the health spa
opens without a certificate in violation §702.351; |

L Failing to depoéit prepayments for a membership in an escrow account
established with a financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation in violation of §702.352;

m. Failing to refund the escrowed prepayment in violation of §702.355;

n. Offering a special offer or discount to fewer than all prospective members in
violation of §702.402;

0. Misrepresenting the availability, quality, or extent of the facilities or services

of the health spa in violation of §702.402;
P Misrepresenting the period during which a special offer or discount will be

available in violation of §702.402;

q. Advertising in print or electronic medium without including in the

State of Texas v. Extreme Fitness, et al.
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advertisement the health spa operator’s certificate of registration number in

violation of §702.404.

XII. DECEPTIVE TRADE PRACTICES ACT VIOLATIONS

12.1 Defendants, as alleged above, have in the course of trade and commerce engaged in

Y

false, misleading and deceptive acts and practices declared unlawful in §17.46(a) and (b) of
the DTPA as follows:

a. By violating the Health Spa Act, the Defendants are in violation of the
DTPA. Section 702.403(a) of the Health Spa Act provides that a person who
violates the Health Spa Act commits a false, misleading, or deceptive act or
practice within the meaﬁing of the DTPA.

b. By advertising for sale or selling memberships in a health spa without
holding a ilealth spa operator’s certificate of registration, the Défendants
caused confusion or misunderstanding as to certification by the State of
Texas in violation of §i7.46(b)(2) and §17.46 (3),

C. By operating a health spa, the Defendants are representing, by implication,
that they have the approval of a health spa registered by the Texas Séoretary
of State, which they do not, in violation of §17.46(b)(5); |

d. By advertising for sale or selling memberships in a héalth spa without

holding a health spa operator’s. certificate of registration, the Defendants
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represented that the services were of a particular standard, when they were of
another in violation of §17.46(b) (7);

€. 'Representing to consumers a membership to a health spa with “NO MONEY
DOWN” but requiring a “enrollment fee” of $25, is advertising services with
intent not td sell them as advertised in violation of §17.46 (b)(9);

f. Represe;lting to consumers there is “NO- CONTRACT” but requiring
cénsumers to sign a “membérship agreement,” constitutes advertising
services with the intent not to sell them as advertised in violation of
§17.46(b)(9);

g. Failing to disclose that they had not purchased the exercise equipment and/or
had the money/ﬁnanciﬁg to purchaée/lease the equipment which was known
at the time the. consumérs lpurchased memberships, and such failure to
disclose such information was intended to induce the consumers into a
transaction that they would not have entered had the information been
disclosed in violation‘ of §17.46(b)(24);

h. Representing to consumers that they could cancel their membership and
receive refunds and by failing to place the pre-paid rﬁembership dues into an
escrow account and spending the membership dues and fees on personal‘ |
items, is‘advertising services with intent not to sell them as advertised in

violation of §17.46(b)(9) and failing to disclose information which was
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intended to induce the consumers into a transaction that they would not have
entered, had the information been disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24);

L Representing that Defendants had a surety bond in place as required by the

~ State of Texas, when in fact they did not, is representing that the services
héve approval, sponsorship, status, affiliation or connection which they did
not in violation of §17.46(b)(5);

j. Representing that membership price of $9.95 per month was limited to the
first 100 people, and continuing to sell memberéhips at $9.95 after the ﬁrs_,t
100 were sold was a false or misleading statement to induced the consumer
into a transaction inté which the consurﬁer would not have entered had the
information been disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24);

k. Representing that the “enrollment fee” of $25 would go up to $100 after the
Grand Opening, was a false or misleading statement to induce the consumer
into a transaction into which the consumer would not have éntered had the
information been disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24)'; |

XIII. INJURY TO CONSUMERS

13.1 Because the Defendants have engaged in the unlawful acts and practices described
above, the Defendants have violated the law as alleged in this Petition. Unless restrained by

this Honorable Court, the Defendants will continue to violate the laws of the State of Texas

and cauée injury to the general public.
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XIV. RESTITUTION

14.1 Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, seeks this Court to order the Defendants to restore
all mo.ney or other property taken from identifiable people by means of unlawful acts or
practices, or in the alternative award judgment for damages to compensate for such losses.

XV. EQUITABLE RESCISSION

15.1 All agreements between Defendants and consumers should be subject to the

equitable remedy of rescission.

XVI. DISGORGEMENT

16.1  All of Defendants’ assets are subject to the equitable remedy of disgorgement,

which is the forced relinquishment of all benefits that would be unjust for Defendants to
| retain, including all ill- gotten gains, benefits or profits. Defendants should be ordered to
" disgorge all monies secured by deception, together with all of the procegds, profits,
income, interest and accessions thereto. Such disgorgement should be for the benefit of

victimized consumers and the State of Texas.

XVII. CONSTRUCTIVE TRUST

17.1 - A constructive trust should be placed upon all of Defendants assets in favor of all
consumers'victimized by Defendants and in favor of the State of Texas until this Court

determines the appropriate amount of restitution and disgorgement.
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XVIII. CIVIL PENALTIES

18.1  Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, seeks this Court to adjudge against Défendants civil.
penalties in favor of Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, for the Defendants"violations of the
Health Spa Act and Deceptive Trade Practices Act. |
XIX. COSTS
19.1  Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, seeks this Court to’ order the Defendants to pay
reasonable expenses, including courfc costs, attorney’s fees, investigative costs, witness fees,
and dvepositic')n expenses, incurred in obtaining an injunction or recovering a civil penalty
pursuant to TEX. OcC. CODE ANN. § 702.551(b). Plaintiff also seeks this court to order the
Defendants to pay pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at tﬁe highest lawful rate.
XX APPLICATION FOR EX PARTE |

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER
AND ASSET FREEZE

20.1 Itisessential that the Court immediately and temporarily restrain Defendants from
continuing with the conduct described in this Petition, namely the unlawful operéﬁon ofa
health spa. Itis éssential that the Court act immediately, prior to notice on Defendants and
a hearing on the matfer, because Defendants will continue to engage in the unlawful
operations of a health spa and thereby cause immediate and irreparable injury, loss, or

damage to persons who pay for health spa services which the Defendants are unable to -

- lawfully provide. Defendants will continue to solicit members each day and will continue to
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receive membership fees and dues from consumers when they are not licensed to operate a
- health spa in the State of Texas.
20.2 Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, also asks that the assets of Defendants be frozen
during the pendency of these legal proceedings to preserve moniés for consumer restitution
upon final judgment. Defendants have received over $40,000.in membership dues and fees
from their victims based on their unlawful health spa operations. The Defendants failed to
place the membership dues/fees in an escrowed account pursuant to the Health Spa Act and
have use the money for their personal expenses and commingled the funds in their business
and personal accounts as stated above. (Exhibit D). Unless an asset freeze is granted,
Defendants’ remaining assets may be dissipated, lost, altered, removed or materially injured.
The interests of the State of Texaé and the public require an Ex Parte Asset Freeze to
preserve monies for consumer restitution.

XXI. PRAYER
21.1 | WHEREFORE, THE .STATE OF TEXAS prays that the Defendants be cited
according to law to appear and answer herein; that before notice and hearing a
TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER AND ASSET FREEZE be issued,; that after due
notice and hearing a TEMPORARY INJUNCTION be issued; and upon trial of this cause
a PERMANENT INJUNCTION be issued, restraining and enjoining the Defendants, its |
officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys and any other person in active concert or

participation with the Defendants, jointly and severally from:
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a. Failing to obtain ahealth spa operator’s certificate, as required by Health Spa
Act §702.101;
b. Failing to complete an ,application‘for a health spa operator’s certification of
registration with the Secretary of State in vioiation of §702.102;
C. Failing to post a health spa operator's certificate of registration in a
- conspicuous place at each registered location, as required by Health Spa Act
§702.105;
d. Féiling to submit to the comptroller, a copy of the operator’s certiﬁcate of
registration for application of a sales tax permit as required by Health Spa Act
| §702.107;
e. Failing to secﬁre a surety bond or posting security with the Texas Secretary
_ of State, as required by Health Spa Act §702.151; and §702.153;
f. Failingto comply with §702.301 requirements in their membership contracts;

g Failing to comply with the disclosure requirements as set forth in §702.302;

h. Failing to provide the required language in the membership contracts in
violation of §702.304; |

L Failing to provide the statutory language in th.e membérship contr.acts in
violation of §702.305;

j. Failing to cancel the membership contracts for a full .refund in violation of
§702.307,
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k. Selling or offering for sell, a membership in a health spa before the health spa
opens without a certificate in violation §702.351;

L Failing to deposit prepayments for a membership in an escrow account
established with a financial institution insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation in violation of §702.352;

m. Failing to refund the escrowed prepayment in violation of §702.355;

n. Offering a special offer or discount to fewer than eﬁl prospective members in
violation of §702.402; |

0. Misrepresenting the availability, quality, or extent of the facilities or services

of the health spa in violation of §702.402;

p. Misrepresenting the period during which a special offer or discount will be
available in violation of §702.402;

q. Advertising in print or electronic mediufn without including in the

advertisement the health spa operator’s certificate of registration number in

violation of §702.404.
L. Advertising for sale or seiling memberships in a health spa without holding

a health spa operator’s certificate of registration, which causes confusion or

misunderstanding as to certification by the State of Texas in violation of

§17.46(b)(2) and §17.46 (3);
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S. ' Ope'rating a health spa without a registering with the Secretary of State,
iﬁlplying that they have the approval of a health spa registered by the Texas
Secretary of State, which they do not, in violation of §17.46(b)(5);

t. Advertising for sale or selling memberships .in a health spa without hOlding
a health spa operator’s certificate of registration, representing 'that the
services are of a partiqular standard, when they were of another in violation
of §17.46(b) (7);

u. Representing to consumers a fnembership to a health spa with “NO MONEY
DOWN?” but requiring a “enrollment fee” of $25, advertising services with
intent not to sell them as advertised in violation of §17.46 (b)(9);

V. Representing to consumers there is “NO CONTRACT” but requiring
consumers to sign a “membership agreement,” advertising serv‘ices with the
intent not to séll them as advertised in violation of §17.46(b)(9);

w. Failing to disclose that they had not purchased the exercise équipment and/or
had the money/ﬁnancing to purchase/lease the equipment which was known
at the time the consumers purchased | memberships, and such failure to
disclose such information was intended to induce the consumers into a
transaction that they would not have entered héd tﬁe information been

disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24);
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X. Representing to consumers that they could cancel their membership and
receive refunds and by failing to place the pre-paid membership dues into an
escrow account and spending the merﬁbership dues and fees on personal
iteﬁs, adveﬂiéing services with intent not to sell them as advertised in
violatioﬁ of §17.46(b)(9) and failing to disclose information which was
intended to induce the consumers into a transaction that they would not have
entered, had the information been disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24);

y. . Representing that Defendants had a surety bond in place as required by the
State of Texas, when in fact they did not, representing that the services have
approval, siaonsofship, status, affiliation or connection which they did not in
violation of §17.46(b)(5);

| Z. Representing that the membership price of $9.95 per month, Was limited to
the first 100 people, and continuing to sell memberships at §9.95 after the
first 100 were sold, a false or misleading statement to induced the conisumer
into a transaction into which the consumer would not have entére'd had the
information been djsclosed in violation of §17.‘46(b)(24);

aa.  Representing that the “enrollment fee” of $25 would go up to $IOO after the
Grand Opening, a false or misleading statement to induced the consum.er into
a transaction into which the consumer would not have entered had the

information been disclosed in violation of §17.46(b)(24);
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bb. | Concealing, withholding, destroying, mutilating, altering, falsifying, or
removing from the jurisdiction of this Court any books, records, documents,
invoices, receipts, or other written material relating to the Defendants
currently or hereafter in Defendants’ possession, custody or control except in
response to further orders or subpoenas in this cause.
| 21.2  Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, further prays that this Court grant leave to conduct
“telephone, oral, written and other depositions of witnesses prior to any scheduled Temporary
Injunction Hearing and prior \to Defendants’ answer date, with reasonable shortened notice
to Defendants and their attorney, if known.
213 In .addition, Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, respectfully prays that this Court will:
a. Adjudge against the Defendants, jointly and severally, c;ivil penalties in favor
of Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, in an amount of up to $1,000.00 per
violation of the Health Spa A.ct not to exceed a total of $25,000.00, pursuant
té TeX. Occ. CODE ANN § 702.553(a) (b); and
b. Adjudge against the Defendants, jointly and Sevgrally, civil penalties in favor
of Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, in the amount of up to $20,000.00 per
violation of the Deceptive Trade Practices Act, pursuant to §17.47(c)(1) of
the DTPA; and
c. Adjudge against the Defendants, jointly and severally, civil penalties in favor

of Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, in the amount of $250,000.00. for
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violations of the Deceptive Trade Practices Actifthe consumer was 65 years
of age or older, pursuant to §17.47(c)(2) of the DTPA; and

Order the Defendants jointly and severally, to restore all money or other
property taken from identifiable people by means of unlawful acts or
practices, orin the alternative award judgment for damages to compensate for
such losses; and

Order disgorgement of all monies taken by Defendants as a result of their
unlawful health spa practices; and

Place an equitable lien on all of Defendants’ asset and rescind all
membership and/or fee agreements entered into by and between Defendants
and their custo\ry‘ners; and

Freeze all assets known and unknown of Defendants to insure restitution for
consumers; and

Adjudge that all fines, penalties or forfeitures payable to and for the benefit
of the State are not dischargeable under bankruptcy pursﬁ&iht to 11 U.S.C.
§523(a)(7); and

Adjudge against the Defendants jointly and severally, reasonable expenses,
including court costs, attorney’s fees, invéstigative costs, witness fees, and
deposition expenses, incurred in obtaining an injunction or recovering a civil

penalty pursuant to TEX. OcC. CODE ANN. § 702.551(b); and
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j. Adj udge againstthe Defenciants jointly and severally, pre-jud gment and post-
judgment interest at the highest lawful rate.
21.4  Further, Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, respectfully prays that this Court will order
" the Defendants to return to the State of Texas all records, whether electronic or hard copy,
whic'h Defendants have collected in the regﬁlar coursei of business or by other means, which
contain personai identifying information and sénsitive personal information of consumers,
as identified in TEX. BUS & CoM. CODE ANN. §35.48 and §48.001, ef seq.
21.5  Further, Plaintiff, STATE OF TEXAS, respectfully pfays for all other reliefto which
the Plaintiff my be justly entitled.
- DATED this g)g@/ day of August, 2008.
Respectfully submitted,

GREG ABBOTT
Attorney General of Texas

KENT C. SULLIVAN
First Assistant Attorney General

JEFF ROSE
Deputy First Assistant Attorney General

Assistant Attorney General
State Bar No. 24034253"
Office of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
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4630 50™ Street, Suite 500
" Lubbock, TX 79414
(806) 747-5238 ; Fax (806) 747-6307

VERIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS . §
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK g

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared affiant
Barbara Dykes, who proved to me through current Texas Driver Liceﬁse to be the person
whose name is subscribed to this Verification and who acknowledged to me. that she
executed the same, and after she was duly sworn, upon his oath, she deposed and said that
the affiant is an Investigator for the Office of the Texas Attorney General, and is authorized
to make this affidavit, that the affiant has carefully read the factual allegations in the
foregoing; PLAINTIFF’S ORIGINAL PETITION AND APPLICATION FOR PERMANENT

INJUNCTION, and has reason to believe that each and all said factual allegatlons are true

and correct; and affiant signs this Verification, pursuant to Rule 682 of the TEXAS RULES OF

@mj%w O«AQM

BARBARA DYKES,
INVESTIGATOR

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me on the 2 day of é// M , 2008. ..
| Lime oW sls, )

¥, IRVIA R. SHEPLER NOTARY PUBLIC INAND

Motary Public FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS
STATE OF TEXAS
5,5,""““\\‘?\3* Gommission Exp. 05-17-2011

Notary without Bond

C1rviL PROCEDURE.
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